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K.J. & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants Q  Pulchowk, Lalitpur I
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNIQUE NEPAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Unique Nepal Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited ("Microfinance”) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081
(July 15, 2024), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that
date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereafter referred to as “the Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Microfinance, as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) and its financial performance, changes in equity,
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards with allowed
carveouts, comply with Company Act, 2063 and Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Microfinance in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in audit of the financial statements of current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Information Technology (IT) System
The Information Technology of the | Our audit approach regarding Information

Microfinance involves a large number of IT
systems that are used to process and record
a large volume of transactions in the
Microfinance's activities.

As a result, Microfinance's financial
accounting and recording procedure places a
significant level of reliance and rely on such
IT systems.

Appropriate IT general controls and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT systems are able to process the

Technology of the Microfinance included:

We conducted the detail understating and

testing regarding the existing system via

enquiry, re-performance and inspection to the
extent of our knowledge.

a) Verification of Loans and Advances
impairment based on aging on a test check
basis.

b) Reviewed the reports generated by the
systems on a sample basis,
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data, as required, completely, accurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting.
Due to the importance of the impact of IT
systems and related control environment on
the Microfinance’s financial reporting
process, we have identified testing of such IT
systems and related control environment as a
key audit matter.

c) Verified Interest Income and expense
booking for loans and deposits using the
Microfinance's System on test basis.

Our Result:

We considered the IT systems and their

relevant controls to be adequate.

Impairment of Loans & Advances

Microfinance’s policy for allowance for
impairment of loans & advances have ben
based on the application of incurred loss
model and Nepal Rastra Bank's Directives, as
applicable. It involves significant
management judgement and estimation. In
addition, assessment of allowances for
impairment is important as carve our
provides for higher of the incurred loss model
or NRB's Directive.

The carrying value of the loans & advances to
customers can be materially misstating if
management'’s judgment and estimation are
inappropriate.

Due to the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements, we have identified
this as Key Audit Matter.

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

a) Review of the overdue status of loans and

advances by obtaining data from the

system and matched the same with the

NRB 2.2 report.

Sample credit files were reviewed, which

includes  evaluation of  borrowers'

repayment behaviour, utilization of loan,

CIC reports & ledger scrutiny.

c) Verification of accuracy of provision
against non-performing loan calculated by
IT system and manual calculation of
sample basis.

Our Result:

We considered the impairment charges on

loans & advances to customers to be

acceptable.

b)

Information Other than the Financial and Auditor's Report Thereon

Microfinance’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chairman's statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Microfinance ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Microfinance
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing Microfinance financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Microfinance's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and tie reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Microfinance ability to
continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause Microfinance to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including
be disclosures, and financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within Microfinance to express an opinion in the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Q\T}az!‘ c" ol
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the
branch offices of Microfinance, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate
for the purpose of audit; the financial statements including statement of financial position, statement
of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have
been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act-2063,
and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Microfinance; and the accounts and
records of the Finance are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us in the course of our
audit, we observed that the loan has been written off; the business of Microfinance was conducted
satisfactorily, and Microfinance transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority; we
did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the Board of Directors
or any employee or any office bearer of Microfinance has acted contrary to the provisions of law or
caused loss or damage to Microfinance or committed any misappropriation of the funds of
Microfinance.

Sijan Bohara, CA
(Partner)

K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2" Mangsir, 2081
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal

UDIN: 241117CA01677qgDTu
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Ashad 2081 (As at 15 July 2024)
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Amount in NPR

Restated*
Note As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 41 344,590,693 342,758,058
Statutory Balances & Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 17,764,900 17,764,900
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 18,623,908 1,000,000
Derivative financial instruments. 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to MFls & Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 3,031,503,124 3,491,954,668
Investment securities 4.8 - -
Current tax assets 4.9 23,741,420 -
Investment property 4.10 - -
Property and equipment 4.1 28,614,433 15,030,776
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 - -
Deferred tax assets 413 7,165,342 6,309,706
Other assets 4.14 8,326,908 9,960,637
Total Assets 3,480,330,729 3,884,778,745
Note As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 4.15 325,830,996 617,733,012
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative financial instruments 417 - -
Deposits from customers 4.18 2,483,221,915 2,508,073,187
Borrowing 4.19 30,000,000 30,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - 1,885,765
Provisions 4.20 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.13 - -
Other liabilities 4.21 280,896,608 274,098,013
Debt securities issued 4.22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
Total liabilities 3,119,949,519 3,431,789,978
Equity
Share capital 4.24 148,575,000 148,575,000
Share premium - -
Retained earnings 53,978,025 152,490,149
Reserves 4.25 157,828,186 151,923,619
Total equity attributable to equity holders 360,381,210 452,988,768
Non-controlling interest - -
Total equity 360,381,210 452,988,768
Total liabilities and equity 3,480,330,729 3,884,778,745
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.26 - -
Net assets value per share 242.56 304.89

Ayodhya Prasad Chaudhary
Chief Finance Officer

Ramesh Chaudhary
Chief IT Officer

Dr. Gopal Dahit
Executive Director

Place: Kohalpur, Banke
Date: November 15, 2024

gfw o wgfaa faxfiw d@ea fafee

Balika Chaudhary
Director

Puran Prasad Chaudhary
Director

Santaram (Dharkatuwa) Tharu
Director

Jagat Ram Tharu (Chaudhary)
Director

Jageswar Prasad Chaudhary
Director

Shiv Bahadur Chaudhary
Chairman

As per our report of even date
CA Sijan Bohara
Partner
K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Amount in NPR

Restated*
Note Year ended Year ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Interest income 4.27 526,776,679 569,781,434
Interest expense 4.28 276,050,319 302,182,825
Net interest income 250,726,360 267,598,609
Fees and commission income 4.29 25,047,681 38,162,129
Fees and commission expense 4.30 11,407 5,661,111
Net fee and commission income 25,036,274 32,501,018
Net interest, fee and commission income 275,762,634 300,099,626
Net trading income 4.31 - -
Other operating income 4.32 27,100,327 18,218,272
Total operating income 302,862,962 318,317,898
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 168,414,508 95,974,361
Net operating income 134,448,454 222,343,537
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.34 89,648,710 97,421,717
Other operating expense 4.35 19,901,981 25,157,203
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.36 9,890,226 5,632,797
Operating Profit 15,007,537 94,131,819
Non operating income 4.37 4,847,175 3,154,710
Non operating expense 4.38 107,500,484 40,744,551
Profit before income tax (87,645,772) 56,541,978
Income tax expense 4.39
Current Tax 1,304,806 18,924,847
Deferred Tax (1,492,661) (967,336)
Profit for the period (87,457,917) 38,584,466
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the company (87,457,917) 38,584,466
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period (87,457,917) 38,584,466

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Ayodhya Prasad Chaudhary
Chief Finance Officer

Balika Chaudhary
Director

Ramesh Chaudhary
Chief IT Officer

Puran Prasad Chaudhary
Director

Santaram (Dharkatuwa) Tharu
Director

Dr. Gopal Dahit
Executive Director

Place: Kohalpur, Banke
Date: November 15, 2024

25.97
25.97

(58.86)
(58.86)

Jagat Ram Tharu (Chaudhary)
Director

Jageswar Prasad Chaudhary
Director

Shiv Bahadur Chaudhary
Chairman

As per our report of even date
CA Sijan Bohara
Partner
K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Amount in NPR

Restated*
Year ended Year ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Profit for the year (87,457,917) 38,584,466
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value - -
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation
- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2,123,419 (752,880)
- Income tax relating to above items (637,026) 225,864
Net Other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1,486,393 (527,016)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) - -
- Income tax relating to above items - -
- Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 1,486,393 (527,016)
Total comprehensive income for the period (85,971,523) 38,057,450
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the company (85,971,523) 38,057,450

Non-controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income for the period (85,971,523) 38,057,450

Ayodhya Prasad Chaudhary
Chief Finance Officer

Balika Chaudhary
Director

Ramesh Chaudhary
Chief IT Officer

Puran Prasad Chaudhary
Director

Dr. Gopal Dahit
Executive Director

Santaram (Dharkatuwa) Tharu
Director

Jagat Ram Tharu (Chaudhary)

Director

Jageswar Prasad Chaudhary

Director

Shiv Bahadur Chaudhary

Chairman

As per our report of even date

Place: Kohalpur, Banke
Date: November 15, 2024

CA Sijan Bohara
Partner

K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

(As per NRB Regulations)

Amount in NPR
Restated*

Particulars FY 80.81 FY 79.80
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (87,457,917) 38,584,466
Adjustments in Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Less: Loss transferred from Merger -
Adjusted Profit (87,457,917) 38,584,466
Appropriations:
a. General reserve - 7,804,919
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund - 390,246
e. Client Protection Fund - 390,246
f. Other 216,190 2,227,583
- Deferred Tax reserve - -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (87,674,107) 27,771,471

Regqulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (1,540,944) (34,138,264)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) - -

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (855,636) (1,193,200)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) 1,486,393 (5627,016)

i. Other (+/-) - -
(Restructuring Reserve) 7,866,082 3,429,590

Net Profit for the Qtr end of Asar,081 available for distirubtion (80,718,211) (4,657,419)

Opening Retained Earnings as of Shrawan 01 152,490,149 164,006,747

Adjustment (+/-) (17,793,913) (6,859,180)

Distribution: -

Bonus Share Issued -

Cash Dividend Paid -

Total Distributable Profit or (loss) as on Qtr end date 2081 Asar 53,978,025 152,490,149

Annualized Distributable Profit/(loss) per Share 36.33 102.64

¥

As per our report even date
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

¥ gafd gfddaes -o0¢a

Amount in NPR

Restated*

Year ended Year ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 526,776,679 569,781,434
Fees and other income received 25,047,681 38,162,129
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 27,100,327 18,218,272
Interest paid (276,050,319) (302,182,825)
Commission and fees paid (11,407) (5,661,111)
Cash Payment to Employees (89,648,710) (97,421,717)
Other expense paid (290,969,798) (158,721,406)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities (77,755,547) 62,174,775
(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets 419,864,309 225,412,666
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions (17,623,908) (1,000,000)
Other trading assets - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 460,451,544 221,944,928
Other assets (22,963,327) 4,467,737

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

g AUt agfaa fa<hio dear fafdes o

(311,840,459)
(291,902,017)

(24,851,271)
4,912,830
30,268,303

(1,304,806)
28,963,498

(23,473,883)

(23,473,883)

(79,091,732)
(206,676,371)

104,788,534
22,796,105
208,495,709

(18,924,847)
189,570,861

(9,035,441)

(9,035,441)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities - -
Repayment of debt securities - -
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities - -
Receipt from issue of shares - 37,942,500
Dividends paid - -
Interest paid

Other receipt/payment (3,656,979) (3,360,470)
Net cash from financing activities (3,656,979) 34,582,030
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,832,635 215,117,450
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 Shrawan 2080 342,758,058 127,640,608
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents as at 32 Asadh 2081 344,590,693 342,758,058
Ayodhya Prasad Chaudhary Balika Chaudhary Jagat Ram Tharu (Chaudhary)

Chief Finance Officer Director Director
Ramesh Chaudhary Puran Prasad Chaudhary Jageswar Prasad Chaudhary
Chief IT Officer Director Director
Dr. Gopal Dahit Santaram (Dharkatuwa) Tharu Shiv Bahadur Chaudhary
Executive Director Director Chairman

As per our report of even date
CA Sijan Bohara
Place: Kohalpur, Banke Partner
Date: November 15, 2024 K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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1. Reporting Entity

Unique Nepal Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited is a public limited company,
incorporated under the Company Act, 2063 and listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange
Limited. It was incorporated on 2075.04.18. It is a class “D” licensed micro-finance
institution regulated under the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 B.S. It
commenced it's operations on 2075.04.18 and has its registered head office at Kohalpur
Municipalty-11, Banke, Lumbini Province.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements were prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-outs
and in the format as per Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2079. Historical cost
convention was used for financial statement recognition and measurement except
otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than historical costs, such as
fair value has been applied, and these have been disclosed in accordance with the
applicable reporting framework.

The amounts of financial statements were presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) being
the functional currency of Unique Nepal. The figures were rounded off to the nearest
rupee except where indicated otherwise.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of distributable profit or Loss and the
Notes to the Accounts.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

Unique Nepal follows Nepalese Financial Year based on Nepalese calendar starting from
15t Sawan and ending on last day of Asar. For the purpose of preparation of this Financial
Statements, following reporting period has been considered:

. . 31 Asar 2081 (15 July 2024)
Current Reporting Period

Comparative reporting period 31 Asar 2080 (16 July 2023)

The approval of the financial statements of Unique Nepal along with the accompanied
notes to the financial statements were adopted by the Board of Directors in its the
meeting held on 30th Kartik, 2081 and the Board acknowledges its responsibility of
preparation of the financial statements. The approved financial statements have been
recommended for approval of the shareholders in the 6™ Annual General Meeting of
Unique Nepal.
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2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also Unique
Nepal’s functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded
off to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

Unique Nepal, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately
suit its circumstances and operating environment. Further, Unique Nepal is required to
make judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting
estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.
It is also required to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in
the financial statements. Unique Nepal applies estimates in preparing and presenting the
financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

The accounting policies as explained in Note 3 herein were consistently applied to all the
years presented except otherwise stated. They were further included in the relevant notes
for each item of the financial statements, and the effect and nature of the changes, if any,
were disclosed. The accounting estimates were appropriately disclosed in the relevant
sections of the Notes to Accounts wherever the estimates have been applied along with
the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

The accounting policies are to be applied consistently. Changes in accounting policies, if
any, are to be disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible. When policies
are not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS, other reporting standards and generally
accepted accounting principles are to be followed.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

Different accounting policies adopted by the management of Unique Nepal has been
applied consistently to all the years presented except otherwise the changes in the
accounting policies has been disclosed separately.

2.6 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers has not been made effective by ICAN
therefore the same has not been considered for the preparation of Financial Statements.
There have been amendments to the Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and applicability of the new Standards have been notified
for IFRS. But the amendments and new standards become applicable only when ICAN
pronounces them. Unique Nepal has availed the Carve-outs on NFRS-9 Financial
Instruments.
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2.7 New Standards and Interpretations Not adapted

Financial statements of Unique Nepal have been prepared in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN) to the extent applicable.

2.8 Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact
of the discounting is material.

2.9 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as Unique Nepal has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment,
the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present
and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital
resources.

2.10 Limitation of NFRS implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same
would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been
noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following
items which were measured or recognized as stated:

1) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation after deducting the net of the plan assets, plus
unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized
actuarial losses.

3.2 Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand and highly liquid financial
assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by Unique Nepal
in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.3.1 Recognition

Unique Nepal initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement
of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. The financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis, as
Unique Nepal has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In
making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of
information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources.
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3.3.2 Classification
Financial Assets

Unique Nepal classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value on the basis of Unique Nepal’'s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
The two classes of financial assets are as follows;

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: a financial asset is measured at
amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and if the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value: a financial asset other than those measured at
amortized cost are measured at fair value. They are further classified into two
categories as below:

¢ Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for
trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss.

¢ Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, Unique Nepal makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes
in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are
classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Unique Nepal classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows:

e Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss: Financial liabilities are
classified at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss as
incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

¢ Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost: Financial liabilities other than those
measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.3.3 Measurement
Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for
an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the statement of Profit or
Loss.
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Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at
amortized cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial
asset or liability classified as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus
any reduction for impairment or uncollectible.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The
subsequent changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.3.4 De-recognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Unique Nepal derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which Unique Nepal neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
shall be recognized in profit and loss account.

In transactions in which Unique Nepal neither retains nor transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset,
Unique Nepal continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.3.5 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the
measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. The fair
values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
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Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets
or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial
instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

All unquoted equity instruments are recorded at cost. For entities of which no data is
whatsoever available, valuation has been done at cost net of impairment if any.

3.3.6 Impairment

At each reporting date, Unique Nepal assesses whether there is any indication that an
asset may have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The management's judgment is extensively used in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are
based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the provision made. The individual impairment provision
applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on
Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are
expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments
about a number of factors including a borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable
value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to
estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is
established for:

- Groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are
held to maturity, that are not considered individually significant; and

- Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be
individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried out using statistical modeling such as historical
trends of the probability of defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and
market conditions which may warrant the loss being greater than suggested by the
historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment, Microfinance has categorized
assets into five broad products as follows:

Business Loan
General Loan

Housing Loan
Personal Loan
Seasonal Loan

apr®d =
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Loan Loss Provision as per Unified Directives to Microfinance

¥ gafd gfddaes -o0¢a

Loan loss provisioning in respect of Performing and Non-performing loans and advances
are based on management's assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and
advances, subject to the minimum provisions prescribed in Unified Directives 2079 issued
by NRB for Microfinance. Provision is made for possible losses as follows:

Additional Provision this Year
Write back of Provision this Year

Categories Loan Amount Rate Provision
Amount
Pass 2,554,615,902 1.30% 33,210,007
Watch List 134,359,035 5% 6,717,952
Restructured/ Rescheduled 189,271,829 5% 9,463,591
Substandard 54,254,898 25% 13,563,725
Doubtful 111,733,803 50% 55,866,902
Bad 441,266,397 100% 441,266,397
Additional Provision 93,851
Total 3,485,501,864 560,182,424
Movement in Loan Loss Provision
Categories Current Year Previous Year Movement
Pass 33,210,007 37,604,320 (4,394,313)
Watch List 6,717,952 5,299,423 1,418,529
Restructured/ Rescheduled 9,463,591 11,258,428 (1,794,837)
Substandard 13,563,725 46,844,871 (33,281,146)
Doubtful 55,866,902 107,868,694 (52,001,792)
Bad 441,266,397 152,892,180 288,374,217
Additional Provision 93,851 30,000,000 (29,906,149)
Total 560,182,424 391,767,916 168,414,509
Particulars Amount
Previous Year's Loan Loss Provision 391,767,916

1,528,084,047
(1,359,669,539)

Total Loan Loss Provision

560,182,424

Carve-out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

As per the NFRS Carve out, Unique Nepal measured impairment loss on loans & advances
as the higher amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph NFRS.

Comparison of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB:

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
LLP as per NRB Directives 560,182,424 391,767,916
Impairment as per NFRS 270,092,692
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3.4 Trading Assets

Financial Assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio
of identified Financial Instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade
date, when Unique Nepal enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and
are normally derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at Fair Value, with
transaction costs taken to Profit or Loss. Subsequent changes in their Fair Values are
recognized in Profit or Loss in ‘Net Trading Income’. However, Unique Nepal does not
have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Asar end 2081.

3.5 Property and Equipment

Recognition

Property and Equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or
supply of services or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during
more than one accounting period. Unique Nepal applies the requirement of the Nepal
Accounting Standard-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these assets.
Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

Measurement

An item of property and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of an item
of property and equipment.

Subsequent Measurement

Unique Nepal has opted cost model for the subsequent measurement of its Property and
Equipment. Property and Equipment is stated at incurred cost (excluding the cost of day-
to-day servicing) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Such cost

includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of Property and Equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within that part will flow to Unique Nepal and it can be reliably
measured. The cost of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are charged to
the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred

Depreciation

Straight line method of depreciation on fixed assets is applied to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful life as per management judgment, as follows:
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Class of assets Revised useful life

Computer 5 Years

Furniture and Fixture 10 Years

Office Equipment 10 years

Other Fixed Assets 10 years

Vehicle 10 Years

Building 50 Years

Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower
Software Over the contract pne(;ioadvg?l gs;r)s if contract period

Assets costing less than Rs 2,000 are fully charged to the profit loss account in the year
of purchase.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings,
major development works, or awaiting capitalization. Capital Work in Progress would be
transferred to the relevant assets when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is included in profit or loss

when the item is derecognized (unless on a sale and leaseback). The gain shall be
classified as revenue.

3.6  Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Recognition

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired in the Business Combination is recognized as Goodwill. Whereas, an identifiable
non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the production or supply
of the services of Unique Nepal of for administrative purposes is recognized as an
Intangible Asset.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets are recognized in the books of account if it is probable
that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. These assets are initially measured
at costs.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenses incurred on an Intangible Asset are capitalized only when it its probable that
this expense will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its
originally assessed standard of performance and this expense can be measured and
attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenses is expenses as incurred.
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Subsequent Measurement

Goodwill and Intangible Assets are subsequently measured at its Costless Accumulated
Impairment Charges/Accumulated Amortization. Amortization of Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets, except Goodwill, are amortized on a Straight-Line basis with the rate
set, dividing the cost of the asset by adjusting in the nearest half-year of the fiscal year.
Management estimates the life of an intangible asset of Five years from the date of its
put to use.

De-recognition of an Intangible Asset

The carrying amount of an item of Intangible Asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain/loss arising on the de-
recognition of an item of Intangible Assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.7 Investment Property

Investment Property is property (Land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both but not for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment Property is
accounted for under the Cost Model in Financial Statements. Accordingly, after
recognition as an asset, the property is carried at cost, less impairment losses. If any
property is reclassified to Investment Property due to changes in its use, Fair Value of

such property at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.
Investment Property are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently
withdrawn from use since no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made
to Investment Property only when there is a change in use. When the use of an Investment
Property changes such that it is reclassified as Property and Equipment, its Fair Value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

3.8 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate
applicable to Unique Nepal as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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3.9 Deposits, Debts Securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

Unique Nepal collects deposits from its members. These transactions are recorded in the
books of the accounts of Microfinance, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability
for Unique Nepal and represents the amount owed to depositors. The balance is valued
at amortized cost. As per para-9 of NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement), the Effective Interest Rate is to be used for booking interest expense and
when calculating the Effective Interest Rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows
considering all contractual term of the financial instrument but not credit loss, which
includes the fees and points received or paid, transaction costs, premiums, discounts. As
per the Carve-Out regarding the Effective Interest Rate treatment issued by ICAN, when
calculating Effective Interest Rate, all these transaction cost shall be considered unless
it is immaterial or impracticable, separate Effective Interest Rate has not been computed
as allowed by Carve-Out issued by ICAN.

b. Debt Securities

Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair
value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their
amortized cost using the effective interest method, except where Unique Nepal
designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Unique Nepal has not issued any
of such debt securities.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are
subordinate to the claims of depositors, debt securities issued, and other creditors.
Unique Nepal does not have any of such subordinated liabilities.

3.10 Provisions

Unique Nepal recognizes a provision if, as a result of a past event, Unique Nepal has a
present constructive or legal obligation that can be reliability measured and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision for an onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be
derived by Unique Nepal from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting
its obligation under the contract.

Unique Nepal does not have any such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as on
Ashad end 2081.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the
course of the ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in
equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Unique
Nepal and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the
period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. Unique Nepal's revenue
comprises of interest income, fees and commissions, remittance income, service fees,
etc. and the bases of incomes recognition are as follows:
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a. Interest Income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest-bearing financial assets
classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss, Interest income is recorded using the EIR.
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Further, Interest Income on
Loan and Advances is recognized as per the Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income,
2019 issued by NRB and Carve-Out issued by ICAN has been opted.

Carve-Out issued by ICAN

As per the Carve-Out regarding the EIR rate treatment issued by ICAN, when calculating
EIR, all these shall be considered unless it is immaterial or impracticable to do so. Since
all these transaction costs cannot be identified separately and separate EIR computation
for every customer seems impracticable, such transaction costs of all previous years has
not been considered when computing EIR. Due to impracticability, such relevant costs are
ignored, due to which EIR rate equals to the rate provided to customers and therefore,
income recognized by system on accrual basis has been considered as income once the
recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been
reduced due to impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Unique Nepal has recognized the accrued interest on loans and advances except interest
income accrued on loss loans and advances as current-year interest income.

b. Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided or a significant act performed.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established.
Usually, this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. No such income has been
earned by Unique Nepal during the year.

d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities
and includes all realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest and dividends.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments measured at fair value through Profit or Loss
includes all gains/(losses) raised from the revaluation of financial instruments at fair
value.

3.12 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or
loss using the effective interest rate method. Unique Nepal uses ASB carve-outs as
mentioned above and treats coupon rates as effective interest rates.
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3.13 Employees Benefits

a. Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under the bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably under short-term employee benefits. Unique Nepal provides bonus at
10% of Net Profit before tax.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12
months after the end of the reporting period):

- wages, salaries, and social security contributions,
- paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

- profit-sharing and bonuses and

- non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the following;

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Unique
Nepal pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in
the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the service are
discounted to their present value.

a. Employee Provident Fund

All employees of Unique Nepal are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both the employee and Unique Nepal
contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. Unique
Nepal does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its
annual contribution.

b. Gratuity

Further New Labor Act, 2074 came in force after 19th of Bhadra 2074 which
requires to provide minimum of 8.33% of Basic Salary plus Grade as gratuity every
month which is in nature of the Define contribution plan. Unique Nepal is providing
gratuity benefits under this provision to all the employees recruited after the
enforcement of new labor act. Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability
under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Note 4.21.
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ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. Unique Nepal’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any
unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

Unique Nepal recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising
from defined benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all
expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or
loss.

Unique Nepal recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss
on curtailment or settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value of
plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation, any
related actuarial gains and losses, and any past service cost that had not
previously been recognized.

a. Gratuity

If the permanent staff who worked five or more years in the financial institution
gets retirement or quits the service after approval of resignation or service
terminated by the financial institution without declaring ineligible for service, will
get the gratuity as follows:

For the staff who have worked for 5 to 10 years - 50% of the last salary for every
year she/he worked.

= For the staffs who have worked for 10 years to 15 years - 100% of the last
month salary for every year she/he worked.

= For the staffs who have worked for 15 to 20 years - 150% of the last month
salary for every year she/he worked.

» For the staffs who worked more than 20 years - two of the last month's salary
for every year she/he worked.

= |If the Staff dies, the gratuity as sub-clause (1), will be given to the person
nominated by the staff and if not nominated, it will be given to his/her nearest
relative.

= Notwithstanding anything written in the sub-clause (1), the gratuity will not be
given to the staff whose service is terminated by the Financial Institution or
resigned by misappropriating or misusing assets or terminated from the
service due to the same reason.

= While providing gratuity to the staff, the last month's salary drawn including
grade will be calculated. This will not include allowances.

A gratuity provision is made every year by Unique Nepal under this plan and this
is in nature of defined benefit plan.
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b. Leave Benefits

Unique Nepal provides accumulated leave benefits under its Employees Byelaw.
The Home leave is accumulated up to 90 days and sick leave is accumulated up
to 45 days. Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long-term benefit liability.
Accumulated leave obligations are estimated on the basis of the last drawn salary
of the employee.

3.14 Leases

At the inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

a. Unique Nepal as a Lessee

= At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability.

= Atthe commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost. The
cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located, or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. The lessee incurs
the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a
consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular period.

» At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall
be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

= Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset after the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset by applying a Cost Model.

b. Cost Model

To apply a cost model, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost: (a) less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and (b) adjusted for
any re-measurement of the lease liability specified in paragraph 36(c). A lessee shall
apply the depreciation requirements in NAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment in
depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements in paragraph 32.
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c. Subsequent Measurement of Lease Liability

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by: (a) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (c) re-measuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications specified in paragraphs 39-46, or to
reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. Interest on the lease liability in each
period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. After the commencement date,
a lessee shall recognize in profit or loss, unless the costs are included in the carrying
amount of another asset applying other applicable Standards, both: (a) interest on the
lease liability; and (b) variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the
lease liability in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
oCCurs.

Unique Nepal does not have any financial/operating lease transaction as on Asar end
2081.

3.15 Share Capital and Reserves

Share Capital and Reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are
claims on the residual interest in the assets of Unique Nepal after deducting all its
liabilities. Changes in Equity during the reporting period comprise income and expenses
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position; plus contribution from the holders of
equity claims, minus distribution to holders of equity claims.

a. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual
obligation to transfer cash, or other financial assets or issue available number of own
equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

b. Reserves

The reserve includes retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as General
Reserve, Corporate Social Responsibility Reserves, Regulatory reserves, etc.

The regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as a result of NFRS convergence with
effect in retained earnings computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

i. Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 is set aside to
the general reserve.

Movement in Statutory General reserve during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR)
Opening Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2080 58,611,656
Amount Transferred during this period
20% of Net profit

Closing Balance as on Asar end 2081 58,611,656
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ii. Capital Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature
reserves such as the amounts arising from share forfeiture, capital grants, and capital
reserves arising out of business combinations. Funds in this reserve are not available for
the distribution of cash dividends but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares upon
obtaining prior approval from the central bank. The amount received from NGO UNYC
Nepal for SIM Project amounting to Rs 378,143.87 has been accumulated in Capital
Reserve.

iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of
corporate social responsibility.

Movement in Corporate Social Responsibility during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Opening Balance of 1st Shrawan, 2080 1,394,900
Add: Provision of this FY (1% of Net Profit a per NFRS) -
Total (A) 1,394,900.00

Less Expenses for the FY
a. Fruit Plan distribution to clients, Bardiya 153,442.00
b. Financial Literacy Program, Tharu Yuva Sabha, Banke 15,000.00
c. Financial Literacy Program, Masuriya, Kailali 13,797.00
d. Support to Traffic Sign Board and other Traffic Management, 22,941.00

Kohalpur, Banke

e. Ghorighora Lawangi Puja and Tharu Cultural Festival, Kailali 20,000.00
f. Blood donation program, Bardiya 18,805.00
g. Global Money Week Program, Financial literacy, Bardiya 14,200.00
h. Joint Global Money Week Program with UNYC, Bardiya 19,043.00
i. Baat Chit Ghar, Tharu Calender Print, Kailali 5,650.00
j. Donation to Jestha Nagrik Chautari, Bhurigaun, Bardiya 60,000.00
k. Financial Literacy Through Various FM Radios 55,000.00
|. Financial Literacy Program to Center chief and guardians 126,860.39
m. Scholarship for Client Member's Children 264,000.00
Total Expenses (B) 788,738.39
Closing Balance as on Asar 31, 2081 (A-B) 606,161.61

iv. Employee Training Fund
NRB Directive 6(5) requires Unique Nepal to incur expenses towards employee training
and development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s total salary and
allowances.

Movement in Employee Training Fund during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Opening Balance of 1st Sawan, 2080 1,210,209

Add: Provision of this F/Y (3% of Staff Salary and Allowances) 2,277,939
Total (A) 3,488,148

Less: Expenses for the F/Y

a. Training expenses For this Year 3,271,958

Total Expenses (B) 3,271,958

Closing Balance as on Asar End 2081 (A-B) 216,190
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v. Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of Unique Nepal to this
reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which
shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend shall be presented under this
reserve.

Unique Nepal Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2080-81

Details of Regulatory Reserve

Short

Provi Sh
sion ort Fair
Short Pr
Loan for ovi Deferred Actuarial Value
Interest Possi . Good Gain on Loss Oth
FY . Loss sio Tax . Loss Total
Receivable R ble will Purchase . Recog er
Provi n Assets Recognized N
sion Losse on nized
son in OCI
NB
Invest
A
ment
2078-79 29,056,620 - - - 5,116,506 - 13,812,500 (134,972) - - 47,850,654
2079-80 34,138,264 - - - 1,193,200 - - 527,016 - - 35,858,480
2080-81 1,540,944 - - - 855,636 - - (1,486,393) - - 910,187
Total 64,735,828 - - - 7,165,342 - 13,812,500 | (1,094,349) - - 84,619,321

vi. Actuarial Gain Loss Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of Unique Nepal both
positive or negative to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of
implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as a free reserve for distribution
of dividends are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of
tax on the defined benefit plan.

vii. Client Protection Fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit as per NRB Directives.

Movement in Client Protection Fund during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Opening Balance of 1st Sawan, 2080 2,575,338.00
Additional of the Fund this F/Y
A. Interest Income to the Fund 62,725.00
B. 1% of Net Profit as per NFRS of the F/Y -
Total(A) 2,638,063.00

Less: Expenses from Fund this Year
A: Center Chief Interaction and Financial Literacy Program

B: Assistance with Accidental & Operation service to the Client 1,010,000.00

C: Assistance to the Member During Natural Disaster 20,000.00

D: Assistance to the Member after children's delivery for support of 1,658,500.00
their health

E: Assistance on venomous Snake Bite

Total Expenses (B) 2,688,500.00

Closing Balance as on Asar End 2081 (A-B) -

The excess amount of Rs 50,437 is directly treated in the Name of client protection fund
expenses.
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3.16 Ea}'nings per share including diluted

Unique Nepal presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.17 Segment Reporting

Unique Nepal has identified the reportable segment as the business activities from which
it earns revenues and incurs expenses whose operating results are reviewed by the
management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess
its performance. The Unique Nepal has identified two segments namely Lumbini and
Sudurpaschim Province as seven operating segments and the segment reporting is set
out in Notes 5.4.

Segment reports include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot
be allocated to aforesaid segment or those related to head office are unallocated are
included in Lumbini. The unallocated items comprise head office assets, head office
expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified
on the basis of the location of the branches in different provinces of the country.
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR

41 Cash and Cash Equivalent
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cash In Hand 2,755,849 3,301,246
Balances with BFls 341,834,844 339,456,812
Money at Call and Short Notice - -
Other - -
344,590,693 342,758,058

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for physical and
financial risks. The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and requirements. Balance

with BFls includes balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions.

4.2 Statutory Balances & Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Statutory Balances with NRB 17,764,900 17,764,900

Statutory Balances with BFls - -

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement - -

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -
17,764,900 17,764,900

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance with the NRB is

principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the NRB.

4.3 Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Placement with Domestic B/Fls 18,623,908 1,000,000.00
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -
18,623,908 1,000,000

This is the fund of Client Protection Fund kept in Fixed Deposit Account in Kumari Bank Limited for six months.
Interest income earned from this Fixed Deposit is credited to this fund and not accounted in the SPL of the
microfinance.

4.4 Derivative financial instruments

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract. - -
Others - -
Held for risk management

Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract - -
Others
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Amount in NPR
4.5 Other Trading Assets

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Treasury bills - -
Government Bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-Pledged - -
4.6 Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Loans to Microfinance Institutions - -
Loans to Finance Institutions - -
Other - -
Less: Allowances for impairment - -
Total - -
4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 - -
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year - -
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off
Balances at Ashad end - -
4.7 Loans and advances to customers
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost 3,591,685,548 3,883,722,584
Less: Impairment Allowances
Collective Impairment 487,371,538 269,424,326
Individual Impairment 72,810,885 122,343,590
Net amount 3,031,503,124 3,491,954,668
Loan and advance measured at FVTPL - -
Total 3,031,503,124 3,491,954,668
afv Aurd @gfaa facha d@en fafiee o % I
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4.71

4.7.2

4.7.3

e

Analysis of loans and advances- By Product

Product

Term Loan

Short term, term loan
Long term, term loan
Hire Purchase Loans
Personal residential Loan
Staff Loans

Other

Sub Total

Interest Receivable
Grand Total

Analysis of loans & advances- By Collateral

Secured
Immovable Assets
Government Guarantee
Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipts
Group Guarantee
Other collateral

Subtotal
Unsecured
Grand Total

Allowances for Impairment

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end

Collective allowances for impairment

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
3,428,402 3,607,200
3,485,501,864 3,771,739,943
3,488,930,266 3,775,347,143
102,755,282 54,187,720
3,591,685,548 3,829,534,864
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
326,268,322 255,784,261

3,162,661,944

3,573,750,603

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

Total allowances for impairment

3,488,930,266 3,829,534,864
3,488,930,266 3,829,534.864
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
122,343,590 122,343,590
49,532,705 -
72,810,885 122,343,590
269,424,326 251,100,011
217,947,212 18,324,315
487,371,538 269,424,326
560,182,424 391,767,916
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

gfe® AU gfaa fa<hi gear fafdes o

Investment Securities

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measure at FVTOCI

Investment securities measured at amortized Cost

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

Investment securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total

¥ gafd gfddaes -o0¢a

Amount in NPR

As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities Amount in NPR

As at As at
15 July 2024 15 July 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in quoted equity securites
Total (A) - - - -
Investment in Unquoted equity securites
Total (B) - - - -
Total (A+B) - - - -
Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Amount in NPR
As at As at
4.9 Current Tax Assets 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Current income tax assets 25,046,226 17,039,082
Tax Assets of prior periods - -
Total 25,046,226 17,039,082
Current income tax liabilities 1,304,806 18,924,847
Tax Liabilities of prior periods - -
Total 1,304,806 18,924,847
Net Current Liabilities 23,741,420 (1,885,765)
Current Tax Assets
Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Company under self- assessment tax
returns filed as per the Income Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the
Company. Similarly, the current income tax liabilities includes the tax payable to the government
computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act 2058.
~____ EECH o I® AU wfaw faci wear fafide
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Amount in NPR

As at As at
4.10 Investment in subsidiaries 15 July 2024 16 July
2023
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total Investment - -
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net Carrying amount - -
. L As at As at
4.10.1 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - - -
. I As at As at
4.10.2 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Total - - - -

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the company
Percentage of Ownership by company

As at 1:5.13:y
15 July 2024 2022
4.10.4 Non Controlling Interest of the subsidiaries
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2022
Equity interest held by NCI (%) - -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year - -
Accumulated balance of NCI as on ashar end - -
Dividend paid to NCI - -
qﬁ%‘ A ?-lﬁlﬁ?{ faehi @i fafes L O3 I
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Amount in NPR

As at As at

411 Investment in Associates 15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Investment in quoted associates - -
Investment in unquoted associates - -

Total Investment - -

Less Impairmment - -
Net Carrying amount - -

The Company does not have any associate as on the reporting date.

. . As at As at
4.11.1 Investment in quoted associates 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - - R
4112 Invest_ment in Unquoted
associates
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - - -

4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the company

Percentage of Ownership by company

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
0% 0%
0% 0%
4.11.4 Equity value of associates
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
I CY o Ifww AU wufaw faxiim den fafee
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR

4.10 Investment Properties

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Sharwan 1 - -
Addition/disposal during the year - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -
Net amount - -

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Sharwan 1, - -
Addition/disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -
Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Impairement Loss

Net amount - -
Total - -

gfe® Aue Efaa fa<hi gear fafdes o VY
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR
4.12 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Others Total
Goodwill Purchased Developed
Cost
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 - -
Additions: - -
Acquisition - -

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 - - - - -
Additions -
Acquisition - - -
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad end 2081 - - - - -

Amortization and Impairment

As on Shrawan 1, 2079 - _
Amortization charge for the Year - - -
Impairment for the year

Disposals

Adjustment - -
As on Ashad end 2080 - - - - -
Amortization charge for the Year - -
Impairment for the year

Disposals -
Adjustment

As on Ashad end 2081 - - - - -

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2080 - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 - - - - -

afe AU wafee R @en fafee o Com
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.13 Deferred tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net Amount

2023-24

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and advance to BFls

Loan and advance to customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property & Equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/liabilities as on Ashadh 31 2081
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Sawan 1 2080
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in
other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and advance to BFls
Loan and advance to customers
Investment Properties
Investment Securities
Property & Equipment
Employees' defined benefit plan
Lease Liabilities
Provisions
Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/liabilities as on year end of
31st Ashad, 2080 (Closing)

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2080 (Opening)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity

S

Amount in NPR

As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
7,165,342 6,309,706
7,165,342 6,309,706

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax
Assets/(Liabilities)

7,314,610
1,642,805

(1,792,073)

(1,792,073)
7,314,610
1,642,805

8,957,415

(1,792,073)

7,165,342

(7,165,342)

(6,309,706)
855,636

(1,492,661)
637,026

Previous Year

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax
Assets/(Liabilities)

6,652,525
1,333,408

(1,902,090)

225,864

(1,902,090)
6,652,525
1,333,408

225,864

7,985,933

(1,676,226)

6,309,706

(6,309,706)
(5,116,506)
1,193,200
(967,336)
(225,864)
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

414

Other Assets
Other Assets

Assets held for sale
Other non banking assets
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Accrued Income
Prepayments and Deposit
Income Tax Deposit
Deferred Employee expenditure
Other

Stationery stock

Others
Total

Amount in NPR

As at
15 July 2024

As at
16 July 2023

2,522,832

2,383,782

3,420,293

3,754,282

2,685,732

3,520,623

8,326,908

9,960,637

Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
Amount in NPR
415 Due to Bank and financial Institutions

Borrowings from BFls

Settlement and clearing accounts

Other

Total

As at
15 July 2024

As at
16 July 2023

325,830,996

617,733,012

325,830,996

617,733,012

Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on
settlement and clearing accounts as well as other
amount due to bank and financial institution is
presented under due to bank and financial institutions.
Amount in NPR
4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Refinance from NRB - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Lender of last resort facility from NRB - -
Securites sold under repurchase agreement - -
Other payable to Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Total - -

gf JoT st i d@en fafies o T
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.17 Derivative financial instruments

I O

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract.

Others

Held for risk management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract
Others

Total

Amount in NPR

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.18 Deposit from Customers

Particulars

Institutional Customers
Term Deposit
Call Deposit
Other

Individual Customers
Term Deposit
Saving Deposit
Saving from Members
Other

Total

Currency wise analysis of deposit from

4.18.1 customers

Particulars

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State Dollar
Great Britian Pound
Euro

Japanese Yen
Chinese yuan
Other

Total

gfw o wgfaa faxfiw d@ea fafee
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Amount in NPR

As at
15 July 2024

As at
16 July 2023

2,483,221,915

2,508,073,187

2,483,221,915

2,508,073,187

As at
15 July 2024

As at
16 July 2023

2,483,221,915

2,508,073,187

2,483,221,915

2,508,073,187
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR

419 Borrowing

Particulars As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - -
Other Licensed Institution - -
Other 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Sub total 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign B/Fls - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions - -
Sub total - -
Total 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00

4.20 Provisions

Particulars As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contracts - -
Other
Total - -

4.20.1 Movement in provision

Particulars As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023

I -

Balance at Sharwan 1
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount
Balance at Ashad end

o  IftE Auw wufaw faxfm e fafwee
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR
4.21 Other Liabilities

. As at As at

421 Particulars 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 14,993,979 14,457,567
Liability for long-service leave 9,388,054 8,377,347
Short-term employee benefits - -
Bills Payable - -
Creditors and accruals 14,749,822 6,920,397
Interest payable on deposit 235,901,798 219,281,328
Interest payable on borrowing 386,937 1,027,063
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease 5,476,017 4,444,692
Employee bonus payable - 12,076,086
Others - 7,513,534
Total 280,896,608 274,098,013

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-
service leave, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. are
presented under this account head of other liabilities. Long service leave consists of sick leave and annual leave.

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations

The amount Recognised in Statement of Financial Position:

Particulars As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 14,993,979 14,457,567
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -
Total Present value of obligations 14,993,979 14,457,567
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present Value of Net Obligation 14,993,979 14,457 567
Recognised Liability for defined benefit obligations 14,993,979 14,457,567

4.21.2 Plan Assets

Particulars As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Equity Securities - -

Government Bonds - -
Bank Deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -
Actual Return on Plan assets

Long Service Leave Liability and Gratuity Liability of the company is unfunded so the company does not have any plan assets.

4.21.3 Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

Particulars As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Defined benefits obligation at Shrawan 1 14,457,567 11,305,510
Acturial (gain)/loss (2,123,419) 752,880
Benefits paid by the plan (397,873) -
Current Service Cost and Interest 3,057,704 2,399,177
Defined benefits obligation at Asadh end 14,993,979 14,457,567
4.21.4 Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets
g AU agfaa fa<hia dear fafdes o 3 I
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Particulars As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Shrawan 1 - -
Contributions paid into plan - -
Benefits paid by the plan - -
Acturial (Losses)/gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Asadh end - -
4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss
Particulars As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Current service cost 1,898,879 1,499,880
Interest on Obligations 1,158,825 899,297
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Total 3,057,704 2,399,177
4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Acturial (gain)/loss (2,123,419) 752,880
Total (2,123,419) 752,880
. . As at As at
4.21.7 Actuarial Assumptions 15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Discount rate 8.50% 8.50%
Expected return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
Future Salay Increase 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate 15.00% 15.00%
¥ gfew A FEfad fasia gean fafee
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.22 Debt Securities Issued Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Debt Securities issued designated at fair value through profit
or loss
Debt Securities issued at amortized cost - -

Total - -

The company does not have any kind of debt securities as on
the reporting date.

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities

As at As at

Particulars 15 July 2024 16 July 2023

Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liability

component)

Other - -
Total - -

The company does not have any kind of subordinated
liabilities as on the reporting date.
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.24

4241

I <

Share Capital

Share Capital

Ordinary Shares

Convertible Preference Shares (equity component only)
Irredemable Preference Shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Calls in Advance

Total

Ordinary Shares

Authorised capital
2,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each

Issued capital

1,485,750 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each

Subscribed and Paid up capital

1,485,750 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each (FY 2023-24)
1,485,750 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each (FY 2022-23)

Amount in NPR

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
148,575,000 148,575,000
148,575,000 148,575,000
As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
200,000,000 200,000,000
148,575,000 148,575,000
148,575,000 148,575,000
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
% Amount % Amount
Domestic Ownership (Promoter)

Nepal Government

"A" Class licensed institutions 17.90% 26,600,000 17.90% 26,600,000
Other licensed institutions

Other institutions 26.59% 39,500,000 26.59% 39,500,000
Other 25.51% 37,902,500 25.51% 37,902,500

Domestic Ownership (Public)

Nepal Government

"A" Class licensed institutions

Other licensed institutions

Other institutions

Other 30.00% 44,572,500 30.00% 44,572,500
Foreign Ownership Promoter

Foreign Ownership Public
Total 100% 148,575,000 100% 148,575,000
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.25

I -

Reserves

Particulars

Statutory General reserve
Capital reserve

Exchange equalization reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Client Protection Fund

Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Other reserve

Total

General Reserve

Amount in NPR

As at As at
15 July 2024 16 July 2023

58,611,656 58,611,656
378,144 378,144
606,162 1,394,900
(0) 2,575,338
84,619,321 83,709,134
2,101,041 614,648
11,511,863 4,639,800
157,828,186 151,923,619

General Reserve maintained pertains to the regulatory requirement of the Bank and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073. There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve.

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

Corporate Social Responsibility reserve of 1% of net profit is maintained as per Nepal Rastra Bank

Directive.

Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS conversion with effect in retained

earning computed as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive no 4.

Actuarial gain/(loss):

Actuarial Gains and Losses are the changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation as a
result of change in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments.
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

¥ gafd gfddaes -o0¢a

Amount in NPR

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment
Lease Commitment
Litigation

Others

Total

4.26.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority
of the institution but provision has not been made

in financial statements.

Capital commitments in relation to Property

and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible

assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.26.2 Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the institution

is lessee
Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years
Sub total

gfw Jue agfaa faxfiw d@ea fafee

As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
As at As at

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
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4.26.3

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the institution
is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total

Grand total

All the operating leases entered by the company
are cancellable by giving a notice period and the
institution does not have any finance lease
commitment as on reporting date.

Litigation
The institution does not have any litigations
pending in any authority.
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Unique Nepal Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Amount in NPR

4.27 Interest income Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Cash and cash equivalent - -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 7,906,611 5,287,050
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 518,554,424 564,052,247
Investment securities - -
Loan and advances to staff 315,645 442,136
Other - -
Total interest income 526,776,679 569,781,434
4.28 Interest expense
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Due to bank and financial institutions 59,935,564 107,122,420
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 213,114,755 192,060,405
Borrowing - -
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total interest expense 276,050,319 302,182,825
4.29 Fees and Commission Income
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Loan administration fees - -
Service fees 24,903,953 37,908,811
Commitment fees - -
Card Issuance Fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Remittance fees 15,991 198,859
Brokerage fees - -
Other fees and commission income 127,737 54,459
Total fees and Commission Income 25,047,681 38,162,129
4.30 Fees and commission expense
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Brokerage
ATM management fees - -
VISA/Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense 11,407 5,661,111
Total fees and Commission Expense 11,407 5,661,111
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4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

I <R

Net trading income

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation - -
Other - -
Net trading income - -
Other operating income

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Foreign exchange revauation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - 5,484
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other 27,100,327 18,212,788
Total 27,100,327 18,218,272
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 168,414,508 95,974,361
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial
institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - -
Total 168,414,508 95,974,361
Personnel Expense

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Salary 46,431,900 47,504,761
Allowances 26,880,747 28,426,525
Gratuity expense 3,057,704 2,399,177
Provident fund 2,971,820 3,326,937
Uniform 872,000 1,470,000
Training & development expense - -
Leave encashment 2,190,152 840,885
Medical - -
Insurance 1,976,689 1,972,266
Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS - -
Other expenses related to staff 5,267,698 5,176,526
Subtotal 89,648,710 91,117,077
Employees bonus - 6,304,640
Grand total 89,648,710 97,421,717

Provision for staff bonus is a mandatory requirement under the requirement of the Bonus Act, 2030. All expenses related to
employees has been included under this head. Expenses covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances,
gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training expenses, insurance, staff bonus, etc.
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4.35 Other operating expense
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Directors' fee 201,000 264,450
Directors' expense 311,246 472,579
Auditors' remuneration 372,900 300,000
Other audit related expense 504,894 533,273
Professional and legal expense 126,670 309,166
Office administration expense 17,077,062 18,135,063
Operating lease expense 372,637 4,606,188
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Other
Finance Cost on Amortization 935,572 536,484
Total 19,901,981 25,157,203
All operating expenses other than those relating to personnel expense
are recognized and presented under this account head. The expenses
covered under this account head includes office administration
expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments
and professional and legal expense, branch expense, etc.
4.35.1 Office administration expense
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Water and Electricity 866,346 828,918
Repair & Maintenance - -
a. Building - -
b. Vehicle 82,952 41,275
c. Computer and Accessories - -
d. Office Equipment and Furniture 481,851 598,002
d. Other 38,660 41,765
Insurance 93,679 97,290
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 905,268 926,211
Printing and Stationery 2,010,003 2,216,862
News Paper, Books and Journals 6,700 29,290
Advertisements 47,000 50,596
Donation 2,000 5,000
Security Expenses 274,703 274,703
Travelling Allowance and Expense 1,307,246 817,223
Entertaintment 14,328 14,925
Annual/ Special General Meeting Expenses 231,187 278,970
Others
a. Fuel and Gas expenses 431,746 439,245
b. Renew and Registration Charges 713,250 194,932
c. Office Consumables 144,929 141,773
d. Staff Recruitment Expenses 58,574 99,243
e. Miscellaneous Expenses 88,517 42,172
f. Credit Information Expenses 1,870 4,720
g. Service Charges - -
h. Accounting Software Expenses 916,430 1,123,040
i. Mess Operation Expenses 69,876 60,259
j. Account Closure Expenses 306,400 312,200
k. Service Charges Expenses 295,000 830,000
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|. Subcommittee Meeting Expenses 89,485 68,410
m. Vehicle Hire Expenses - -
n. Health and Sanitation Expenses 62,150 39,350
o. Interaction Program Expenses 1,863,673 -
p. Review Expenses 823,526 1,087,200
g. SMS Facility Expenses 668,112 655,400
r. Calendar Printing Expenses 1,563,676 424,645
s. Inspection Program Expenses 513,075 504,925
t. Anniversary Celebration Expenses 45,900 56,985
u. Report Writing, Editing, Designing and Printing Expenses 331,405 261,638
v. Merger Expenses 72,248 -
w. Office Management Expenses 25,356 1,955
x. Photo and Flex Print Expenses 35,201 9,380
y. SIM Project Expenses -
z. Tax Expenses 30,282 1,162,707
aa. Share Issuance Expenses - 3,017,383
ab. Write off Expenses 210,042 84,450
ac. House Rent -
ad. Health and Sanitation Expenses - -
ae. Microfinance Conference Expenses 688,298 -
af. Scholorship Distribution Program Expenses 206,537 240,000
ag. Brochure and leaflet printing expenses - -
ah. Training Expenses 409,146 249,072
ai. Festival Expenses - 36,945
aj. Cash Loss by Theft - 83,305
ak. Penalty for Renewable and Ocr Updates - 344,440
al. Customer Protection Expenses 50,437 338,260
Total 17,077,062 18,135,063
4.36 Depreciation & Amortisation
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Depreciation on property and equipment 9,890,226 5,632,797
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets - -
Total 9,890,226 5,632,797
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of
an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of
the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life.
Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRS on property and
equipment, and investment properties.
4.37 Non operating income
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Recovery of loan written off 4,847,175 3,154,710
Other income - -
Total 4,847,175 3,154,710
4.38 Non operating expense
Year Ended Year Ended
15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Loan written off 107,500,484 40,613,493
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense - 131,058
Total 107,500,484 40,744,551

I RY

The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. The expense
covered under this account head includes loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring,

plant property and equipment written off etc.
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4.39 Income tax expense

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Current tax expense
Current year 1,304,806 18,924,847
Adjustments for prior years -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,492,661) (967,336)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense (187,856) 17,957,512
The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and
presented under this account head. This account head includes current
tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.
4.39.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Year Ended Year Ended

15 July 2024 16 July 2023
Profit before tax (87,645,772) 56,541,978
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 % (26,293,732) 16,962,593
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 27,598,537 1,902,319
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items - -
Total income tax expense 1,304,8(& 18,864,912
Effective tax rate -1.5% 33.36%
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5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management

The Risk Management structure of Unique Nepal has set a clear separation between
the businesses function and risk management function. Accordingly, Unique Nepal has
set up a separate Risk Management Committee (RMC) headed by a Member of Board as
Coordinator of RMC. The RMC evaluates overall risk faced and determines the level of
risks which will be in the best interest of Unique Nepal. RMC oversees global, macro,
micro and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on
periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management
Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as
appropriate.

i Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of Unique Nepal and is responsible
for framing and implementing robust policies and frameworks for effective compliance
of regulations and directions issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the
strategies, policies, and procedures are in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance
limit for effective management of risk within Unique Nepal. The board understands the
nature of risk of Unique Nepal, and periodically reviews reports on risk management,
including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through
the reporting by the Risk Management.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, Unique Nepal has established
Risk Management Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB
directive. At least four quarterly meetings is conducted on an annual basis however
number of meetings can be increased as per the requirement. The committee supervises
the overall risk management of Unique Nepal broadly classified as liquidity risk, market
risk, operational risk, credit risk, and residual risk.

ii. Risk Governance

Unique Nepal has formulated its own Risk Management Polices and is complying with
the same to mitigate the risk at the enterprise level arising to Unique Nepal and comply
with the provisions mentioned in the NRB Directive.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and
compliance with, policies relating to management risk, supply risk, production risk,
demand risk and collection risk.

Unique Nepal's risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining
risk within Unique Nepal's risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the
appropriate functional, client business, senior management and committees. Information
regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies and standards is
communicated through the business, functional, senior management, and committees.
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5.2 Capital Management
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

g AU agfaa fa<hio dear fafds o

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

Amount in ‘000

Particulars

Amount

Paid up Capital (ordinary shares)

Proposed bonus share

148,575

Share premium

Irredeemable preferential share

General Reserve Fund

58,612

Accumulated profit/loss (Retained earnings)

53,978

Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet

Capital Redemption Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Fund

Calls in advance

Other Free Reserves

7,165

Deductions:

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits

Investment to the company having financial interests

Fictitious Asset

of NRB

Investment on land and building for self use not complying the Directives

limits

Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of

Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time

Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws

Total Tier 1 Capital

261,165

Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

Particulars

Amount (NPR)

Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan

49,392

Additional loan loss provision

94

Hybrid capital instruments

Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt

Exchange Equalization Fund

Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is
added automatically)

Investment adjustment Fund

Total Tier 2 capital

49,485

)
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iiii. Total qualifying capital

S. N. | Particulars Amount (in Rs. ‘000")
Core Capital 261,165

B Supplementary Capital 49,485
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 310,650

b) Risk Exposures

Statement of Risk Weighted Assets
Amount in ‘000

Weight Current Year
Description (%) Amount RWA
A. On Balance-sheet Assets
Cash Balance 0.00 2,756 -
Gold (Tradable) 0.00 - -
NRB Balance 0.00 17,765 -
Investment to Govt. Bond 0.00 - -
Investment to NRB Bond 0.00 - -
Loan against Own FD 0.00 - -
Loan against Govt. Securities 0.00 - -
Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0.00 - -
Investment to Youth Self-employment Fund 0.00 - -
Balance on domestic banks and financial
institutions 0.20 341,835 68,367
Loan against other banks' and financial
institutions' FD 0.20 - -
Foreign bank balance 0.20 - -
Money at call 0.20 - -
Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 0.20 - -
Investment to internationally rated Banks 0.20 - -
Inter-bank lending 0.20 - -
Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 0.20 - -
Other investments 1.00 - -
Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 1.00 3,591,686 3,591,686
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Fixed assets 1.00 28,614 28,614
Net interest receivables 1.00 - -
Gross Non-Banking Asset 1.00 - -
Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 1.00 8,327 8,327
Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding
the limits 150.00 - -
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 3,990,982 | 3,696,994
B. Off Balance Sheet Items
Bills collection 0.00 - -
Forward foreign exchange contract 0.10 - -
L/C with maturity less than six months
(Outstanding value) 0.20 - -
Guarantee against International rated bank's
counter guarantee 0.20 - -
L/C with maturity more than six months
(Outstanding value) 0.50 - -
Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 0.50 - -
Loan sale with repurchase agreement 0.50 - -
Advance payment guarantee 1.00 - -
Financial and other guarantee 1.00 - -
Irrevocable loan commitment 1.00 - -
Possible liabilities for income tax 1.00 - -
All types of possible liabilities including
acceptance 1.00 - -
Rediscounted bills 1.00 - -
Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 1.00 - -
Unpaid guarantee claims 2.00 - -
Claimed possible liabilities but not accepted 2.00 - -
Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) - -
Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2%
of Total Assets) C 2.00 79,820 73,940
Total Risk-Weighted Assets A+ B+ C 4,070,802 3,770,934
C. Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 310,650
D. Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted
Assets:
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Capital Fund (In Percentage)

Capital Fund (8%) 8.24
Core Capital (4%) 6.93
Capital Fund Surplus/(Deficit) 0.24
Core Capital Surplus/(Deficit) 2.93

c) Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net)

______________[ele

Particulars

Amount in NPR'000

Gross NPAs Loan.Lf)ss Net NPAs
Provision
Sub Standard Loans 54,254,898 13,563,725 40,691,174
Doubtful Loans 111,733,803 55,866,902 55,866,902
Loss 441,266,397 441,266,397 0
Total NPAs 607,255,098 510,697,023 96,558,075
o  IftE Auw wufaw faxfm e fafwee




¥ gafd gfddaes -o0¢a

ZcLe'vo6'6Zy'e | ZLZ'v06'62K'E | 6LS'676'6LL'E 6L5'6V6'6LL'E
€1L0'860v/C €L0'860v/¢C 809'968'08¢ 809'96808¢ LZv sallfiqel] 1ay10
000'000°0€ 000'000°0€ 000'000°0€ 000'000°0€ 6LV Buimouiog
/81'€£0'805C L81'€L0'805C GLe'LTT'esr ' GL6'LTT'E8Y'C 8LV sJawoisno wolj sysodaq
- - - - oLV jueg elisey |edaN 01 anQg
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . suolnnuisu|
CLOEELLL9 cLo'eeL’ /19 966'0£8'S¢CE 966'0£8'SCE SLY [e1ouBUI pUe ueg o1 ang
salljiqel jeloueuly
€92'8EY'€98'E | €92'8EV'E98'E | £€5'6080CY'E €€5'608'0Ct'e S}ossy |eldueul [ejo |
£L€9°096'6 £€9'096'6 806'92¢€'8 806'92€'8 1749 4 slesse 1ayl0
899vS6°L6Y'E 899vS6'LeY'E | ¥ZL'E0SLED'E ¥ZL'€E0S'LED'E LY SIaWO0]snd 0] S8dUeApE pue sueo]
nat an . suonnusuy|
000000°L 000000°L 806'€29'8L 806'€29'81 v [BIOUBUL PUB YUBE UM JUSWS0R|d
ot ot ) jueg elisey |edaN
006¥9L L1 006¥3L L1 0061921 00679L'LL ¢ woJj an( 13 seoueleg Aioinieis
850'8GLCVE 8G0'8G.CVE €69'06S V€ €69'06S V€ L'y 1udjeAlinba yseo pue ysed
S)assy |eloueulq

anjeA Jie4 anjep buifue) anjeA Jie4 anjep buifue)
080¢ Jesy LE le sy L80¢C 1esy LE 1e sy S9JON

109 I

)

:S3111|IqeI| pUB S19SSE |BIOURUI) JO UOIIBDIISSE|O Byl SUGIYXd a|gel Buimo||o) 8y "awodul aAisuayaldwod Jaylo
ybnoJiyi anjea e} pue sso| pue ujoid ybnolyl anjeA Jiej ‘1S0 PazZILoWY Ul palISSe|d ale sallljiqel| pue s1asse [eloueul) ay |

sal)jIge]| [elouURUL) pUB S)3SSE [RIOURUL) JO UONBIYISSRI)  €°G

gfeer Auter etaa fa<ha @ear fafiee

>



qiffe g gfeaes —30¢9

5.3.1 Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

B OR

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. For some
assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be
available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market
information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in
both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the
asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement
date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. Held for trading and

available-for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by

level of the fair value hierarchy

Amount in NPR

. ngr value As at As at
Particulars Hierarchy | .7 ncar2081 | 31 Asar 2080
(Level)
Financial Assets
Debt securities 3 - -
Government bonds 3 - -
Investments in Fixed Deposit 3 18,623,908 1,000,000
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 3 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 3 - -
Loans and advances to customers 3 3,031,503,124 3,491,954,668
Accounts receivable 3 2,522,832 3,754,282
Accrued Income 3 - -
Total 3,052,649,864 | 3,496,708,950
Financial liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3 325,830,996 617,733,012
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 3 - -
Deposits from customers 3 2,483,221,915 2,508,073,187
Borrowing 3 30,000,000 30,000,000
Provisions 3 - -
Other liabilities 3 280,896,608 274,098,013
Debt securities issued 3 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 3 - -
Total 3,119,949,519 | 3,429,904,212
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Unique Nepal does not have any major customers which accounts for more than 10% of

entity’s revenue.

5.4 Operating Segment Information
5.4.1 General Information
A component of Laghubitta that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur losses including revenue and expenses that relate to
transactions with any other components of the Laghubitta, whose operating
results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about
recourses allocation to each segment and assets, its performance and for which
discrete financial information is available is termed as operating segment. Based
on the nature of the business, transactions, products, and services, the
management have identified two reporting segments of the Laghubitta for the
purpose of financial reporting:
a. Lumbini Province
b. Sudurpaschim province
5.4.2 Information about Profit or loss, Assets and liabilities
Particulars Lumbini Sudurpaschim Total
Revenues from External Customers 347,843,959.22 286,675,922.03 634,519,881.25
Expenses to External Customers 216,732,838.83 169,007,096.29 385,739,935.12
Intersegment Expenses/Revenues 103,613,455.08 5,781,161.00 109,394,616.08
Net Revenue 27,497,665.31 111,887,664.74 139,385,330.05
Interest Revenue 244,230,504.14 280,894,761.03 525,125,265.17
Interest Expense 216,732,838.83 169,007,096.29 385,739,935.12
Net Interest Expenses/Revenue 27,497,665.31 111,887,664.74 | 139,385,330.05
Depreciation and Amortization 1,856,885.20 645,738.44 2,502,623.64
Segment Profit/(Loss) 30,545,082.07 14,723,152.84 45,268,234.91
Other material non-cash items: -
Segment Assets 2,735,922,701.38 | 2,293,565,759.15 | 5,029,488,460.53
Segment Liabilities 2,360,568,460.89 | 2,815,876,295.72 | 5,176,444,756.61
5.4.3 Measurement of Operating Segment Profit or loss, Assets and liabilities
Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee
and commission revenue, net trading revenue, other operating incomes, and inter-
segment revenue. The transactions between the reporting segments are recorded
using the inter-branch accounts. These accounts are reconciled and inter-segment
balances are canceled out at each reporting date. The inter-segment revenue and
expenses are transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using microfinance’s
policy.
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5.4.4 Information about Product and Services
Revenue from each type of product and service:

Revenue from each type of product and services

a. Microfinance Related Services

634,519,881.25

b. Others

Total

634,519,881.25

5.4.5 Information about Geographical Areas

Revenues from following Geographical areas:

a) Domestic

Lumbini Province

347,843,959.22

Sudurpaschim Province

286,675,922.03

b) Foreign

Total

634,519,881.25

5.4.6 Information about Major Customers

The Revenue from one single External Customer don't exceed 10 percent of the
entity's revenue for the Microfinance.

5.5 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.26.

5.6 Related Party Disclosures

Unique Nepal identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of

NAS 24.

Name

Relationship

Remarks

Dr. Gopal Dahit

Executive Director

Raj Kumar Pokharel

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Man Bahadur Chaudhary

Manager, Human Resource Section -
Chief

Rajendra Kumar Chaudhary

Manager, Internal Audit Section- Chief

Madan Chaudhary

Manager, Micro-finance Section— Chief

Ayodhya Prasad Chaudhary

Account & finance Section — Chief

Narendra Tharu

Store Section — Chief

Ramesh Chaudhary

IT Section — Chief

_______________[[ek{
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5.6.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

¥ gafa fddaes -o0¢a

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 201,000 during the fiscal

year. There were 13 Board Meetings conducted during the fiscal year.

The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

S.N. Name Relationship Dal.te of
appointment
1 Mr. Shiv Bahadur Chaudhary Chairman 2023-03-18
2 Mr. Santa Ram (Dharkatuwa) Tharu Member 2023-03-18
3 Mr. Puran Prasad Chaudhary Member 2023-03-18
4 Mr. Jagat Ram Tharu (Chaudhary) Member 2023-03-18
5 | Miss. Balika Chaudhary Member (Public | )4 53 54
Representative)
6 Mr. Jageswor Prasad Chaudhary Member (Pu_bllc 2024-01-09
Representative)
7 | Dr. Gopal Dahit Executive 2022-09-18
Director

The Board Members have not been provided with any facilities other than meeting
allowances except in the case of the Executive Director, disclosure of which has been
done under section 5.6.2.

5.6.2 Amount paid to Executive Director

Dr. Gopal Dahit is appointed as Executive Director who looks after the operations and
management of Unique Nepal. He has been paid a total of NPR. 2,888,997 during the year.
This amount is inclusive of government tax.

The Salary and benefits paid to the Executive Director are as follows:

S.N. | Particulars Amount
1 | Short-Term Employee Benefits 2,115,750
2 | Retirement Benefits 0
3 | Daily and Travel Allowance 459,167
4 | Other (Bonus) 314080
Total 2,888,997

5.7 Events after reporting date

Unique Nepal monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as
adjusting and/or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting
events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material
events are disclosed in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent
ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31 Asar 2081 till the
signing of this financial statement on 26th Ashoj 2081.
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